

National Housing Preservation Database

User Guide



Table of Contents

Contents

About the NHPD	
Using the Research Tool	4
About the Research Tool	4
Research Tool Data Grid Filter Directions	5
Research Tool Data Grid Download Directions	7
Research Tool Database Extract Download Directions	7
Using the Mapping Tool	9
NHPD Use Cases	
Creating a Local Preservation Database	
Instructions	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Identifying Properties that are at Risk of Loss	
Identifying Inactive Properties	
Locating Specific Properties	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Locating Properties Within Half Mile of Location	Error! Bookmark not defined.



About the NHPD

The *NHPD* was created in 2011 to provide communities with the information they need to effectively preserve their stock of public and affordable housing. The database provides over 18,000 users access to de-duplicated information on the federally assisted housing inventory across the US. The *NHPD* is available to non-profit organizations at no cost.

The NHPD has been used to:

- Estimate the amount of affordable housing in specific areas
- Determine the number of properties at risk of losing one or more subsidies
- Develop strategies on how to preserve affordable housing
- Advocate for the preservation of at-risk properties
- Identify affordable housing options for Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) recipients
- Select properties for acquisition and prospective development sites
- Identify which regulations apply to a property by studying the subsidies awarded to housing providers
- Research affordable housing that has been lost from the housing stock overtime
- Apply for Small Start transit grant applications

The *NHPD* is comprised of three tools to help you locate, research, and report on publicly supported rental housing in your community:



This guide describes how to navigate the interface of NHPD's Mapping and Research Tool and provides use case descriptions for creating a local preservation database, identifying properties that are at risk of loss, and identifying inactive properties.



Using the Research Tool

About the Research Tool

National Housing Preservation Database (NHPD)

			HOME	AB	OUT DC	CUMEN	ITATION	REPOR	TS R	ESOURCE	S LOG	SIN RE	GISTER				
		c	ubsidu Eiltors														
		3	ubsidy Fillers														
			Subsidy Status:				*	APP									
			Program:				÷		EFFICIENS								
		Active	e and Inconclusi *			MPLETE D	ATABASE	Xlsx	-	EXPORT FIL	TERED GRID		SI	HOW ADDITION	AL VARIABLES		
													Enter	text to search			
#	Property Name	Property Address	City	State	Zip Code	Total Units	Total Active Subsidies	Property 9 Status	Earliest Start Date	Latest End Date	Latitude	Longitude	County	Congressional District	Owner Name	Owner Type 9	
	9	9	9		9	9	9	9	• 9	• 9	9	9	9	9	9	9	2
	IVY ESTATES	6729 Zeigler Blvd	Mobile	AL	36608-4253	14	0	Inconclusive	08/11/2016	08/10/2017	30.708540	-88.200550	Mobile	01	PORT CITY HOUSING	Non-Profit	Det
	RENDU TERRACE WEST	7400 Old Shell Rd	Mobile	AL	36608-4549	50	1	Active	12/14/2016	12/13/2017	30.693016	-88.214826	Mobile	01	RENDU TERRACE WEST INC	Non-Profit	Det
	MAIN AVENUE APARTMENTS	105 E Walnut St	Sylacauga	AL	35150-3012	24	1	Active	03/13/2017	03/12/2018	33.163565	-86.248770	Talladega	03	COOSA VALLEY SENIORS HOUSING INC	Non-Profit	Det
	PRESBYTERIAN OAKS III	23 Ironaton Rd	Talladega	AL	35160-5033	18	0	Inconclusive	08/22/2016	08/21/2017	33.440600	-86.040970	Talladega	03	PRESBYTERIAN OAKS III INC	Non-Profit	Det
	AHEPA 310-IX	7560 Olympic	Theodore	AL	36582-3868	50	1	Active	12/19/2016	12/18/2017	30.561990	-88.219500	Mobile	01	AHEPA 310-IX INC	Non-Profit	Det
	SUN VALLEY APARTMENTS	375 W Ross St	Batesville	AR	72501-4438	20	1	Active	03/01/2017	02/28/2018	35.774725	-91.662960	Independence	01	SUN VALLEY APTS INC	Non-Profit	Deta
	INDEPENDENCE APARTMENTS	4040 Harrison St	Batesville	AR	72501-9768	18	1	Active	01/01/2017	12/31/2017	35.767330	-91.590000	Independence	01	INDEPENDENCE APTS	Non-Profit	Det
	OSAGE HEIGHTS SENIOR HOUSING	3303 SE L St	Bentonville	AR	72712-3706	24	1	Active	03/01/2017	02/28/2018	36.338779	-94.193698	Benton	03	OSAGE HEIGHTS SENIOR HOUSING INC	Non-Profit	Det
1	MEADOWOOD GARDENS II	907 Meadowood Ln	Bentonville	AR	72712-5441	12	o	Inconclusive	08/08/2016	08/07/2017	36.373990	-94.198570	Benton	03	MEADOWOOD GARDENS	Non-Profit	Detr

The <u>Research Tool</u> contains detailed information on each of the properties receiving federal assistance and each of their subsidies. One property can receive multiple subsidies. Upon entering the tool, all properties will be displayed (one per line) in the data grid below the subsidy filters. You may filter the data by subsidy type or status at the top of the page. You may also filter the database by property level attributes, such as property status, address, or latest subsidy end date on the data grid. To add additional fields to the data grid, click

SHOW ADDITIONAL VARIABLES

and drag and drop the any variables you would like to add. Subsidy information for each property will be



displayed in the grid below the specified property when you click <a> next to each property's name to expand the record. You may download your customized grid or download the entire database or database extract by clicking

Please refer to the <u>Data Dictionary</u> for specific information on the data fields contained in the NHPD or the <u>Data Notes</u> page for information on how data are merged together and cleaned.

Research Tool Data Grid Filter Directions

Filter by Subsidy Attributes

National Housing Preservation Database (NHPD)

			НОМЕ	ABO	UT DO	CUMEN	TATION	REPOR	TS R	ESOURCE	S LOG	SIN RE	GISTER				
		S	Ubsidy Filters Subsidy Status: Program:	Active	18		¥ ¥	APP	LY FILTERS								
		Activ	e and Inconclusi -	D	OWNLOAD CON	IPLETE D	ATABASE	Xlsx	•	EXPORT FIL	TERED GRID		Enter		L VARIABLES		
#	Property Name	Property Address	City	State	Zip Code	Total Units	Total Active Subsidies	Property 9 Status	Earliest Start Date	Latest End Date	Latitude	Longitude	County	Congressional District	Owner Name	Owner Type	9
	Ŷ	9	Ŷ	9	Ŷ	9	9	9	• 9	• 9	Ŷ	9	9	9	9		9
->	IVY ESTATES	6729 Zeigler Blvd	Mobile	AL	38608-4253	14	0	Inconclusive	08/11/2016	08/10/2017	30.708540	-88.200550	Mobile	01	PORT CITY HOUSING	Non-Profit	Details
->	RENDU TERRACE WEST	7400 Old Shell Rd	Mobile	AL	36608-4549	50	1	Active	12/14/2016	12/13/2017	30.693016	-88.214826	Mobile	01	RENDU TERRACE WEST INC	Non-Profit	Details
->	MAIN AVENUE APARTMENTS	105 E Walnut St	Sylacauga	AL	35150-3012	24	1	Active	03/13/2017	03/12/2018	33.163565	-86.248770	Talladega	03	COOSA VALLEY SENIORS HOUSING INC	Non-Profit	Details
->	PRESBYTERIAN OAKS III	23 Ironaton Rd	Talladega	AL	35160-5033	18	0	Inconclusive	08/22/2016	08/21/2017	33.440600	-86.040970	Talladega	03	PRESBYTERIAN OAKS III INC	Non-Profit	Details
(-))	AHEPA 310-IX	7560 Olympic	Theodore	AL	36582-3868	50	1	Active	12/19/2016	12/18/2017	30.561990	-88.219500	Mobile	01	AHEPA 310-IX INC	Non-Profit	Details

The box at the top of the screen can be used to filter the types of subsidies that are displayed in the grid and the status of subsidies. For example, you may choose to view only active properties with Section 8 subsidies. Location and other property information, such as latest end date, can be filtered directly on the grid below. If you wish to view all properties and subsidies, you do not need to enter any information into this section.



- 'Program' Check the box next to a specific subsidy type to view properties with that particular subsidy. You may check multiple boxes to view properties with multiple subsidy types. If you would like to view properties with all subsidy types, leave all boxes unchecked (the default) or check all boxes. If a property has the type of subsidy you have selected, its other subsidies will be displayed as well.
- 'Subsidy Status' All properties are shown by default. To view properties with active subsidies, click the checkbox to the left of 'Active.' To view properties with active and inconclusive subsidies, click the check box to the left of 'Active' and 'Inconclusive.' Likewise, to view properties with at least one inactive subsidy, click the checkbox to the left of 'Inactive.' A property can have a combination of active, inactive, and inconclusive subsidies. Please note that a property with an inactive subsidy can still be active if there is another active subsidy attached to the property. A property is considered active if it has at least one active subsidy, inconclusive if it has no active subsidies and at least one inconclusive subsidy, and inactive if it only has inactive subsidies.

After you have finished entering your search criteria, click the description button. The Research Tool will return a table of properties meeting your search criteria in the grid below. Expand the search to the left of a property's name to view its detailed subsidy information in a new table below the property record. To begin a new search, change your filter criteria or remove search criteria entered into the boxes

at the top of each column and click the APPLY FILTERS button again.

Filter by Property Attributes



www.preservationdatabase.org



You may further customize the grid by entering information into the blank box below any column name. You can control how the grid filters

data by clicking the ficon at the bottom right side of each column header. Filter types for text fields, such as city, include begins with, contains, doesn't contain, ends with, equals, and doesn't equal. Filter types for numeric fields, such as total units, include equals, doesn't equal, is less than, is less than or equal to, is greater than, and is greater than or equal to. Date fields, such as latest subsidy end date, can be filtered by any specified date range. Users can apply filters to multiple fields within the database. The grid will then be filtered according to the information entered. For example, entering a specific property name under 'property name' will filter the grid to include only properties with the name specified. Likewise, filtering by a specific state, county, zip code, or city will return the specified location. You may also sort the data in the grid by clicking on the column name of the data you wish to see sorted. You may add additional columns

by clicking . A list of hidden fields will appear. Drag the hidden field you wish to view onto the top row of the grid in the position in which you would like it displayed. You may also hide fields by dragging the column header to the Field Chooser box that appears. Please refer to the *Data Dictionary* for specific information on the variables contained in the Research Tool data grid.

Research Tool Data Grid Download Directions

You may also download the list of properties returned in the Research Tool data grid by selecting a format for download and clicking the

EXPORT FILTERED GRID button the middle of the screen above the data grid. The data grid will be downloaded as it is displayed on your screen. If you would like to download only a list of properties, minimize any subsidy displays currently open. You have the option to download property records, subsidy records, or all records, which includes property records with subsidy records listed below. Users downloading property records with subsidy records listed below are limited to downloading up to 1,000 records.

Research Tool Database Extract Download Directions

The entire NHPD is available for download in .xlsx format. Extracts of the database are also available for download by state and property

status type. Click on the **DOWNLOAD COMPLETE DATABASE** button in the upper left corner to view the extracts that are available and select a format for download.

The Research Tool data extract is in a different format than the Research Tool data grid. In the Research Tool data extract, all subsidy information appears alongside property level information in a set of new subsidy-specific columns, instead of subsidy information expanding below each property record. In other words, subsidy and property information are horizontal files instead of vertical files in the data extract and each row represents one property record. While most properties contain only one or two of the same type of subsidy (ex.



two HUD project-based rental assistance (PBRA) contracts or two tax credit (LIHTC) allocations), some properties contain a number of the same type of subsidy (for example, ten tax credit allocations or five project-based contracts). Because of space constraints, the *NHPD* only provides subsidy information on the first two most recent subsidies of a given subsidy type. However, the total number of any specific subsidy is provided in the first field preceding that subsidy's information. These pre-packed files list property and subsidy level information for each property on one row.

Once you have downloaded the data, please refer to the <u>Data Dictionary</u> for specific information on the data file itself and the data fields contained in the extract. Please note that data format in the data extract is different from the format found in the data grid. In addition, the data in the detailed information downloads is updated tri-annually and when the data is refreshed and the data grid download more frequently is updated as it undergoes continual data cleaning. As such, the data downloaded from the data grid may vary from the information in the data extract. To access more information about the data cleaning process, please see the <u>Data Notes</u> page.



Using the Mapping Tool



You may view a map of all the properties found in the *NHPD* by clicking *Locate* on the *NHPD* homepage. The Mapping Tool presents a filterable map of all active or likely active publicly supported rental properties in the *NHPD*.

Click on the map to zoom-in to your geographic area of interest. Once the map is situated, select your filter criteria on the left sidebar to search publicly supported properties and then click 'Apply'. Fields can be left blank if you do not wish to search by them.



Publicly supported properties that meet your criteria and are located in the map's view extent will then appear on the map and will be listed under the filtered properties tab. To enhance loading speeds, only properties located within the view extent of the map will be displayed. If you are interested in locating publicly supported properties across the United States, you may zoom out.

Properties are color coded based on their funding stream. To view a map legend that provides a key for all displayed properties, click

Once filters are applied, you may click the button to view infographics on the number of publicly supported units expiring by year and the funding streams for the selected properties of interest. These infographics refresh as the filter criteria is updated.





You may print your map by selecting 'Print' in your Internet browser's menu. You may also obtain a .pdf copy of your map by selecting 'Print' in your Internet browser's menu and selecting 'Adobe PDF' as the printer name (if you have the required software).

NHPD Use Cases

Creating a Local Preservation Database

While the *NHPD* contains only federally assisted housing properties, it is designed to allow users to add their own state and local subsidy information. To create your own localized version of the *NHPD*, follow the steps below. If you need assistance or would like the NHPD team to import property or state level subsidy data to the NHPD for you, please <u>contact us</u>.

• Filter and Download the Data Grid – Filter the data by your desired subsidy preference. Then type your city and state (or area of interest) into the boxes below the column headers on the data grid to refine your selection of properties. Download the data grid by clicking on the button 'Export Filtered Data Grid As' and selecting 'xlsx.' Use this new spreadsheet to begin your local database.

OR

Download a Database Extract– Select the data extract for your state and download the data. You may further refine the extract by sorting the data by city after download and cutting and pasting the records from your city into another spreadsheet. Use the new spreadsheet to begin your local database.

- Create a Unique Database Identifier Sort the data by the 'Property Name' field. Create a new column titled 'Local Database ID,' to serve as a unique identifier for all properties in your local database. Add a unique code for each property in your database in this column (this field can be automatically generated).
- Prepare the Spreadsheet Add additional columns at the end of the spreadsheet which correspond to the types of local subsidies that are available in your state and/or city. For example, if your state provides loans to developers for affordable housing projects (e.g. 'State Program AAA') add the following columns to the end of the spreadsheet:

State_AAA_1_ID State_AAA_1_status State_AAA_1_program name State_AAA_1_renewal status



State_AAA_1_assisted units State_AAA_1_start date State_AAA_1_end date State_AAA_1_principal balance State_AAA_2_ID State_AAA_2_status State_AAA_2_program name State_AAA_2_renewal status State_AAA_2_assisted units State_AAA_2_start date State_AAA_2_end date State_AAA_2_principal balance

Add similar columns for each state and local subsidy you wish to catalog in your local database.

- Add Local Property Data If you can identify properties with state and local subsidies that are currently in the *NHPD*, add the local subsidy information to the columns you created at the end of the spreadsheet. Add new (non-federally subsidized) properties with state or local subsidies in the geographic area you selected to the bottom of the spreadsheet. Fill in the property information columns and the new local subsidy columns. Leave the 'NHPD ID' field blank for newly added properties, but be sure to add a new unique code in the field 'Local Database ID'
- Remove Duplicates Sort your spreadsheet by 'Property Name.' If you see any duplicate properties with both data from the *NHPD* and local data, paste the local data into the local subsidy fields for the *NHPD* property and delete the line of data for the local property. Repeat this process again after sorting by property address (in case the property name has changed)
- Note Duplicates for Future Reference Create a new column titled 'Local Duplicate.' If you have found a property in the *NHPD* that also has a local subsidy as noted in the example above, place a "1" or "Y" in the 'Local Duplicate' column in the row corresponding to the duplicate property. This will let you quickly identify federal properties in the *NHPD* with local subsidies the next time you update your database



Identifying Properties that are at Risk of Loss

Once you have created a local version of the *NHPD*, you may begin to identify properties in your area considered 'at risk of loss' from your local affordable housing stock. Properties potentially 'at risk of loss' include those falling into disrepair and those with subsidies nearing their expiration date. To generate a list of these properties, apply the following steps:

1. Filter NHPD properties with a Property Status equal to active and inconclusive and click 'Ok'. A list of property statuses can be

displayed by c	licl	kin	ng 📍																		
						•	DOW	NLOAD COMPL	ETE DATA	ABASE	XIsx	EXI	PORT FILTERE	D GRID +		SHO	W ADDITIONAL V	ARIABLES			
																Enter tex	kt to search				
		#	Property Name	Property Address	City		State	Zip Code	Total Units	Total Active Subsidies	Property Status	Earliest Start Date	Latest End Date	Latitude	Longitude	County	Congressional District	Owner Name	Owner Type	9	
		Clear	9	9		9	9	9	9	9		(Select All)		9	9	9	9	9		9	
	۲		RENDU TERRACE WEST	7400 Old Shell Rd	Mobile		AL	36608-4549	50	1	Active	Active		30.693016	-88.214826	Mobile	01	RENDU TERRACE WEST INC	Non-Profit	Det	ails
	•		MAIN AVENUE APARTMENTS	105 E Walnut St	Sylacauga		AL	35150-3012	24	1	Active	Inactive	re	33.163565	-86.248770	Talladega	03	COOSA VALLEY SENIORS HOUSING INC	Non-Profit	Det	ails
	۲		AHEPA 310-IX	7560 Olympic Ln	Theodore		AL	36582-3868	50	1	Active			30.561990	-88.219500	Mobile	01	AHEPA 310-IX INC	Non-Profit	Det	ails
	9		SUN VALLEY APARTMENTS	375 W Ross St	Batesville		AR	72501-4436	20	1	Active	1		35.774725	-91.662960	Independence	01	SUN VALLEY APTS	Non-Profit	Det	ails
	۲		INDEPENDENCE APARTMENTS	4040 Harrison St	Batesville		AR	72501-9768	18	ा	Active	OK Can	icel	35.767330	-91.590000	Independence	01	INDEPENDENCE APTS INC	Non-Profit	Det	ails
			OSAGE											1							

2. Select the $| \varphi$ button under the **Latest End Date** field and check 'is less than.'

			•	DOWN	OAD COMPLE	te datab	ASE	XIsx		EXPO		ED GRID -		SHO	W ADDITIONAL V	'ARI/
														Enter tex	t to search	
#	Property Name	Property Address	City	State	Zip Code	Total Units	Total Active Subsidies	Property Status	9	Earliest Start Date	Latest End • Date	Latitude	Longitude	County	Congressional District	0
Clear	9	9	9	9	9	9	9		9	+ 9	- 9	>	9 9	9	9	T
	LIBERTY CENTER	600 N Washington St	Jacksonville	FL	32202-2779	100	1	Active		12/31/1997	12/31/207	Equals Doesn't e	equal	Duval	05	Ī
	KARIS VILLAGE	21517 SW 119th Ave	MIAMI	FL	33177-5913	86	1	Active		12/31/2015	12/31/200	 Is less th Is less th 	nan nan or equal to	Viami-Dade	26	Γ
	GRAHAM AT GRACEPOINT	2400 E Henry Ave	Tampa	FL	33610-4435	90	1	Active		12/31/2015	12/31/206	Is greate	er than	Hillsborough	14	Γ
	BROOKSIDE	1011 Marsh	Fort Myere	FI	33005-4217	50	4	Activo		10/01/2001	12/21/2065	Is greate	r than or equal to		10	er

3. Filter *NHPD* properties with a **Latest End Date** is less than five years from today's date.



			29		DOWN	ILOAD COMPLE	te datae	ASE	Xlsx	EXPO	ORT FILTERE	D GRID -				SHOW	N ADDI	ITIONAL VA	RIABLES			
																Enter text	to sear	rch				
#	Property Name	Property Address	City		State	Zip Code	Total Units	Total Active Subsidies	Property + 9 Status	Earliest Start Date	Latest End Date	Latitude		Longitude	c	County	Cong Distr	gressional ict	Owner Name	Owner Type	9	
Clear	9	9		9	9	9 9	9	9	9	9	12 3 - 9	2	9		9	9	2	9	9		9	
٠	RENDU TERRACE WEST	7400 Old Shell Rd	Mobile		AL	36608-4549	50	1	Active	12/14/2016		0	ece	mber, 2	021) ((4)		RENDU TERRACE WEST INC	Non-Profit	Deta	tails
	MAIN AVENUE APARTMENTS	105 E Walnut St	Sylacauga		AL	35150-3012	24	1	Active	03/13/2017		SUN MO	ом т	UE WED	THU	FRI SAT			COOSA VALLEY SENIORS HOUSING INC	Non-Profit	Deta	tails
٠	AHEPA 310-IX	7560 Olympic Ln	Theodore		AL	36582-3868	50	1	Active	12/19/2016	48	5 0	9 (5 (30 1 7 8	2	3 4 10 11			AHEPA 310-IX INC	Non-Profit	Deta	tails
٠	SUN VALLEY APARTMENTS	375 W Ross St	Batesville		AR	72501-4436	20	1	Active	03/01/2017	50	12 1	3	14 15	16	17 18			SUN VALLEY APTS	Non-Profit	Deta	tails
	INDEPENDENCE APARTMENTS	4040 Harrison St	Batesville		AR	72501-9768	18	1	Active	01/01/2017	52	19 2 26 2	0 7	21 22 28 29	30	31			INDEPENDENCE APTS INC	Non-Profit	Deta	tails
۲	OSAGE HEIGHTS SENIOR HOUSING	3303 SE L St	Bentonville		AR	72712-3706	24	1	Active	03/01/2017	10		Ted		8	7.11			OSAGE HEIGHTS SENIOR HOUSING INC	Non-Profit	Deta	tails
2	RUSSIAN JACK	1260 Delasala	Anchorage		AV	00500 2027	20		Anti-	11/00/0010	1		1002	ay Cie	sar		- 1		SENIOR LIVING	Neg Draft	Dette	tell.

4. Apply any geographic filters of interest, including **City**, **State**, **Zip Code**, **County**, and/or **Congressional District**. Type the area of interest in the text box below the field name. If you are searching by **Congressional District** you will need to filter by the **State** field first.

				DOW	ILOAD COMPLE	ETE DATA	BASE	XIsx	EXPO	ORT FILTERE	D GRID +		SHO	V ADDITIONAL V	ARIABLES			
													Enter text	to search				
#	Property Name	Property Address	City	State	Zip Code	Total Units	Total Active Subsidies	Property Status	Earliest Start Date	Latest End Date	Latitude	Longitude	County	Congressional District	Owner Name	Owner Type	9	
Clear	9		9	9		9	9		9 - 9	12 🕲 🕶 9	9	9	9	9	9		9	
•	RENDU TERRACE	7400 Old Shell Rd	Mobile	AL	36608-4549	50	1	Active	12/14/2016	12/13/2017	30.693016	-88.214826	Mobile	01	RENDU TERRACE WEST INC	Non-Profit	Det	ails

- 5. *Optional*: Apply any additional filters to narrow the list of properties expiring in the next five years down to only those that meet a set of preservation criteria defined by your organization. These criteria could be properties funded by select subsidies, properties owned by for-profit companies, or properties that have been built in the last 30 years.
- 6. Download the list of properties by clicking **Export Filtered Grid** and selecting Export Properties.

				*		DO	WNLOAD CON	IPLETE	DATABASE		XIsx		-	EXF	PORT FILTE	RED GRID	•			SHOW ADDITION	IAL VARIABLES		
														E	xport All				Ente	er text to search			
		Durant						Tabat	Total			Τ.	-	E	xport Prope	erties				0			
	Property Name	Address	City		State		Zip Code	Units	Active Subsidies	Status	- 9	10 10	Start Date	E	xport Subs	idies		Longitude	County	District	Owner Name	Owner Type	٩.
Clear	9	9		9		9	9		9		9	2	- 9	7 1	2 😳 🕶 9		9	9	New Hav 9	9	9		9
۲	Saint Martin	200 Goffe St	New Haven		СТ		06511-3362	6	3	Active		1	10/01/2013	0	9/30/2018	41.31629	0	-72.935640	New Haven	03	ST MARTINS INVESTORS	Profit Motivated	Deta



Identifying Inactive Properties

Properties can be classified as active, inconclusive, or inactive depending on whether the owner of the property receives any rental subsidies and is required to charge low-income households rent below the market-rate. Since a property can receive multiple subsidies with varying lengths and depth of assistance, properties are classified as active, inactive, or inconclusive depending on the collective status of each subsidy attached to the property. The three property statuses are described below:

Property Status	Description	Classification
Active	Property is required to offer rent below the market rate for low-income households.	Any property with at least one active subsidy.
Inconclusive	Property may be required to offer rent below the market rate for low-income households. The property is missing subsidy status information or cannot be definitively confirmed as either active or inactive.	Any property with at least one inconclusive subsidy, but no active subsidy, but no active subsidies.
Inactive	Property is no longer required to offer rent below the market rate for low-income households.	Any property with no active or inconclusive subsidies.

Subsidies can be classified as inconclusive or inactive for the following reasons:

Subsidy Statu	is Reasons
Active	Subsidy end date is in the future Subsidy is listed as active
Inconclusive	Subsidy end date passed, but the owner may have extended affordability restrictions not captured in the data Subsidy end date is missing Subsidy is listed as non-programmatic (the subsidy is no longer tracked by HUD, but it can still be active)
Inactive	Subsidy end date passed Subsidy is missing from subsequent data updates



Subsidy is listed as terminated

Subsidy status is determined differently for each subsidy program depending on the type and quality of the data provided by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the US Department of Agriculture. Please refer to the <u>Data Dictionary</u> for specific information on how subsidy status is determined for each subsidy program.

Users performing overtime analyses using the *NHPD* are advised to read the *Data Notes* page to understand how the accuracy, format, completion, and frequency of update for each data source vary by program and have changed overtime.

Users performing analysis on active and inactive properties are encouraged to reach out to their local housing finance agency to collect additional information about subsidies classified as inconclusive or use their best judgement to make assumptions on whether inconclusive properties should be included in their active property count. The *NHPD* team classifies inconclusive subsidies as 'likely active' when creating the *Preservation Profiles* if the inconclusive subsidies meet the following criteria:

	Subsidy Status Description	Subsidy Type
End Date Missing		LIHTC
End Date Missing		Section 515
End Date Missing		Section 202
End Date Missing		Section 8
End Date Passed		Section 8
Non-programmati	C	LIHTC

If you have any corrections to the status of any properties listed in the database, please contact <u>datafeedback@preservationdatabase.org</u>.